IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

:

:

:

:

:

STATE OF FLORIDA,			

### JURISDICTIONAL BRIEF OF PETITIONER

BARBARA M. LINTHICUM PUBLIC DEFENDER SECOND JUDICIAL CIRCUIT LYNN A. WILLIAMS ASSISTANT PUBLIC DEFENDER LEON COUNTY COURTHOUSE FOURTH FLOOR, NORTH 301 SOUTH MONROE STREET TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 32301 (904)488-2458

75,937

CASE NO.

La Charles

ATTORNEY FOR APPELLANT FLA. BAR #185484

#

### JURISDICTIONAL BRIEF OF PETITIONER

# I. PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

This is an appeal from the decision of the First District Court of Appeal in <u>Blair v. State</u>, 15 F.L.W. D904 (Fla. 1st DCA April 4, 1990).

Petitioner was the appellant in the district court and the defendant in the circuit court, and will be referred to as petitioner or by name. Respondent was the appellee in the District Court and the prosecutor in the circuit court, and will be referred to as respondent or the state.

-1-

#### II. STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

Appellant was convicted after jury trial of first degree murder and armed robbery.

On the first degree murder conviction, he was sentenced to life imprisonment with no possibility of parole for twenty-five years. On the armed robbery conviction, the trial judge departed from the recommended guideline sentence of twelve to seventeen years and sentenced appellant to life imprisonment with a three-year mandatory minimum, consecutive to the sentence imposed on the first degree murder conviction.

The First District Court of Appeal affirmed appellant's conviction but reversed the sentence and remanded for resentencing. <u>Blair v. State</u>, 15 F.L.W. D904 (Fla. 1st DCA April 4, 1990).

The court ruled that the evidence established the two offenses arose from a single continuous criminal episode and therefore the imposition of consecutive minimum mandatory sentences was error.

The court further ruled that the trial court's finding that a departure from the guidelines, based on an escalating pattern of criminality, was a proper reason for departure and supported by the record.

The court then held:

Additionally, the supreme court has recently held in <u>Ree v. State</u>, So.2d (Fla. 1989), opinion filed November 16, 989 [14 F.L.W. 565], that written reasons for departure must be issued at the time sentence is pronounced. Since written reasons in the instant case were not

-2-

entered until after the March 23, 1989
sentencing hearing, reversal for
resentencing according to Ree is required.
 Accordingly, we affirm the judgment of
guilt on both counts, affirm the sentence
in part, and reverse and remand for
resentencing. The trial court is
instructed that any mandatory minimum
sentences must be imposed concurrently, and
is directed to follow the mandates of Ree
v. State, supra, with regard to the entry
of written reasons for departure from the
sentencing guidelines.

Blair v. State, supra, 15 F.L.W. at 904-905.

Petitioner's notice to invoke discretionary jurisdiction was filed with this court on April 27, 1990.

### III. SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The First District Court of Appeal reversed appellant's sentence based on the trial judge's failure to issue contemporaneous written reasons for departure from the guidelines. The court, however, went on to find the reason for departure valid, and authorized resentencing outside the guidelines.

The holding that petitioner can be resentenced outside the guidelines conflicts with this court's recent decision in <u>Pope</u> <u>v. State</u>, 15 F.L.W. S243 (Fla. April 26, 1990) and earlier decision in <u>Shull v. Dugger</u>, 515 So.2d 748 (Fla. 1987).

In <u>Pope</u>, this court held that "when an appellate court reverses a departure sentence because there were no written reasons, the court must remand for resentencing with no possibility of departure from the guidelines" <u>Id</u>. at S244.

-4-

IV. ARGUMENT

THIS COURT SHOULD ACCEPT JURISDICTION BECAUSE THE DECISION IN BLAIR V. STATE, 14 F.L.W. D904 (Fla. 1ST DCA APRIL 4, 1990) EXPRESSLY AND DIRECTLY CONFLICTS WITH THIS COURT'S DECISIONS IN POPE V. STATE, 15 F.L.W. S243 (Fla. APRIL 26, 1990) AND <u>SHULL</u> V. DUGGER, 515 So.2d 748 (Fla. 1987).

The opinion of the District Court of Appeal in petitioner's case found that:

On the armed robbery count, the trial court departed from the recommended guideline sentence of 12-17 years and sentenced appellant to life imprisonment with a three year mandatory minimum, to run consecutively to the sentence imposed for first degree murder. Although the trial court announced at the hearing that its departure was based on appellant's escalating pattern of criminal activity, the written order listing this reason was not prepared until after the hearing, and was not filed until March 28, 1989 -- five days after the hearing.

Blair v. State, 14 F.L.W. D904 (Fla. 1st DCA April 4, 1990).

The court found the imposition of consecutive minimum mandatory sentences error in petitioner's case and further, relying on this Court's opinion in <u>Ree v. State</u>, 14 F.L.W. S565 (Fla. November 16, 1989), held:

> Since written reasons in the instant case were not entered until after the March 23, 1989 sentencing hearing, reversal for resentencing according to Ree is required. ... The trial court is directed that any mandatory minimum sentences must be imposed concurrently, and is directed to follow the mandates of Ree v. State, supra, with regard to the entry of written reasons for departure from the sentencing guidelines.

Blair v. State, supra, 14 F.L.W. D904 at 904-905.

-5-

In <u>Ree v. State</u>, supra, this Court held written reasons for departure not imposed contemporaneously with the imposition of sentence were invalid.

The District Court of Appeals opinion in <u>Blair v.State</u>, supra, requiring resentencing of appellant for failure to provide written reasons at sentencing, follows in part the dictates of <u>Ree v. State</u>, supra. However, in authorizing resentencing of appellant on remand to a sentence which is a departure from the guidelines, <u>Blair v State</u>, supra, conflicts with this Court's recent decision in <u>Pope v. State</u>, 15 F.L.W. S243 (Fla. April 26, 1990) and earlier decision in <u>Shull v.</u> Dugger, 515 So.2d 748 (Fla. 1987).

In <u>Shull v. Dugger</u>, supra, this Court held that "generally, when all the reasons stated by the trial court in support of departure are found invalid, resentencing following remand must be within the presumptive guidelines sentence." <u>Id</u>. at 749.

This Court held in <u>Pope v. State</u>, supra, that "when an appellate court reverses a departure sentence because there were no written reasons, the court must remand for resentencing with no possibility of departure from the guidelines." <u>Id</u>. at S244.

Based on the above stated conflict between <u>Blair v. State</u>, supra, and this Court's opinion in <u>Pope v. State</u>, supra, and <u>Shull v. Dugger</u>, supra, this Court should accept jurisdiction and reverse the portion of the District Court of Appeal's

opinion in <u>Blair v. State</u>, supra, which authorizes a departure from the guideline sentence.

#### V. CONCLUSION

Based upon the foregoing argument and citation of authority, petitioner requests this Court take jurisdiction of this case due to the conflict between the opinion of the District Court of Appeal in <u>Blair v. State</u>, supra, and this Court's decisions in <u>Pope v.State</u>, supra and <u>Shull v. Dugger</u>, supra.