IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

VASTEN E. BLAIR,

Petitioner,

v.

CASE NO. 75,937

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

---

JURISDICTIONAL BRIEF OF RESPONDENT

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH  
ATTORNEY GENERAL

BRADLEY R. BISCHOFF  
ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL  
FLORIDA BAR NO. 714224

DEPARTMENT OF LEGAL AFFAIRS  
THE CAPITOL  
TALLAHASSEE, FL 32399-1050  
(904) 488-0600

COUNSEL FOR RESPONDENT

JURISDICTIONAL BRIEF OF RESPONDENT

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

This is an appeal from the decision of the First District Court of Appeal in Blair v. State, 15 F.L.W. D904 (Fla. 1st DCA April 4, 1990).

Petitioner was the appellant in the district court and the defendant in the circuit court, and will be referred to as Petitioner. Respondent was the appellee in the District Court and the prosecutor in the circuit court, and will be referred to as Respondent or the State.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

Respondent accepts Petitioner's statement of the case and facts.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

Since the argument herein is within the page limitation for summaries of argument, a formal summary of the argument will be omitted.

ARGUMENT

ISSUE

THIS COURT SHOULD DECLINE TO ACCEPT JURISDICTION IN THIS CAUSE DUE TO LACK OF CONFLICT BETWEEN THE DECISION BELOW AND THE CASES CITED BY PETITIONER.

In the instant case, the First District Court of Appeal found that the trial court's reason for imposing a guidelines departure sentence was proper (slip opinion, infra at 2), however, the court reversed Petitioner's sentence pursuant to the mandate of Ree v. State, 14 F.L.W. 565 (Fla. November 16, 1989), because a written reason for departure was not entered until after the sentencing hearing. The appellate court directed the trial court to resentence Petitioner and follow the mandates of Ree v. State, supra. (slip opinion at p.3).

Petitioner contends that the opinion below conflicts with this Court's decisions in Pope v. State, 15 F.L.W. S243 (Fla. April 26, 1990), and Shull v. Dugger, 515 So.2d 748 (Fla. 1987). The State will show that no conflict exists and that Petitioner's reliance on the two cases cited above is misplaced and does not form a basis for this Court to assume "conflict" jurisdiction.

Petitioner first argues that the opinion below in this case conflicts with Shull v. Dugger, supra, and cites the following language from that opinion:

Generally, when all reasons stated by the trial court in support of departure are found invalid, resentencing following remand must be within the presumptive guidelines sentence.

Shull v. Dugger, supra at 749. It is clear that this language refers to the situation where no reasons for departure found by the trial court are valid. In the opinion below in this case, the departure reason was found to be valid (slip opinion, infra at 2,3). Consequently there is no conflict, as the two opinions address different situations.

Petitioner next argues that the opinion below in this case conflicts with Pope v. State, supra, and cites the following language:

...when an appellate court reverses a departure sentence because there were no written reasons, the court must remand for resentencing with no possibility of departure from the guidelines."

Pope v. State, supra at S244. It is clear that this language refers to the situation where no written reasons for departure are given by the trial court. In the instant case, written reasons for departure were issued by the trial court, albeit subsequent to the sentencing hearing (slip opinion, infra at 3). Consequently, there is no conflict, as the two opinions address different situations.

The cases cited by Petitioner are so dissimilar factually with the instant case that they afford this Court no basis for assuming "conflict" jurisdiction. The State




would note that the instant opinion is in harmony with other decisions in the First District. See e.g., Lyles v. State, 15 F.L.W. D894 (Fla. 1st DCA, April 5, 1990), review pending, and Williams v. State, 15 F.L.W. D895 (Fla. 1st DCA April 5, 1990), review pending.

CONCLUSION

Due to the fact that the cases cited by Petitioner seeking to establish conflict jurisdiction in this Court are predicated on a set of factual circumstances not present in the instant case, Respondent respectfully requests that this Honorable Court decline to accept jurisdiction over the cause at bar.